

LEX FORTI

LEGAL JOURNAL

VOL- I ISSUE- VI

DISCLAIMER

No part of this publication may be reproduced or copied in any form by any means without prior written permission of Editor-in-chief of LexForti Legal Journal. The Editorial Team of LexForti Legal Journal holds the copyright to all articles contributed to this publication. The views expressed in this publication are purely personal opinions of the authors and do not reflect the views of the Editorial Team of LexForti. Though all efforts are made to ensure the accuracy and correctness of the information published, LexForti shall not be responsible for any errors caused due to oversight otherwise.

EDITORIAL BOARD

EDITOR IN CHIEF
ROHIT PRADHAN
ADVOCATE PRIME DISPUTE
PHONE - +91-8757182705
EMAIL - LEX.FORTII@GMAIL.COM

EDITOR IN CHIEF

MS.SRIDHRUTI CHITRAPU
MEMBER || CHARTED INSTITUTE
OF ARBITRATORS
PHONE - +91-8500832102

EDITOR

NAGESHWAR RAO
PROFESSOR (BANKING LAW) EXP. 8+ YEARS; 11+
YEARS WORK EXP. AT ICFAI; 28+ YEARS WORK
EXPERIENCE IN BANKING SECTOR; CONTENT
WRITER FOR BUSINESS TIMES AND ECONOMIC
TIMES; EDITED 50+ BOOKS ON MANAGEMENT,
ECONOMICS AND BANKING;

EDITORIAL BOARD

EDITOR

DR. RAJANIKANTH M
ASSISTANT PROFESSOR (SYMBIOSIS
INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY) - MARKETING
MANAGEMENT

EDITOR

NILIMA PANDA B.SC LLB., LLM (NLSIU) (SPECIALIZATION BUSINESS LAW)

FDITOR

DR. PRIYANKA R. MOHOD LLB., LLM (SPECIALIZATION CONSTITUTIONAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE LAW)., NET (TWICE) AND SET (MAH.)

EDITOR

MS.NANDITA REDDY ADVOCATE PRIME DISPUTE

ABOUT US

LexForti is a free open access peer-reviewed journal, which gives insight upon broad and dynamic legal issues. The very objective of the LexForti is to provide open and free access to knowledge to everyone. LexForti is highly committed to helping law students to get their research articles published and an avenue to the aspiring students, teachers and scholars to make a contribution in the legal sphere. LexForti revolves around the firmament of legal issues; consisting of corporate law, family law, contract law, taxation, alternative dispute resolution, IP Laws, Criminal Laws and various other Civil issues.

Role of Medical Practitioner in Criminal Investigation Devans	h Nema

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACT	3
INTRODUCTION	4
LEGAL PROCEDURE	5
Legal Procedure In Judicial Enquiry	6
Police Inquest	6
Magistrate Inquest	6
Discrepancy between the Inquest Report and the Post-mortem REPORT. —	7
RELEVANCY OF MEDICAL WITH OTHER LAWS	7
Indian Penal Code, 1860	7
Indian Evidence Act, 1872	8
Documentary evidence:	8
Oral evidence:	9
Dying declaration	10
MEDICAL EVIDENCE AND MEDICAL WITNESS	10
Medical Witness	12
LAWS GOVERNING MEDICAL PRACTITIONER	14
MEDICAL NEGLIGENCE	14
Criminal Negligence	15
ROLE IN CASE OF SEXUAL OFFENCES	16
POCSO (Protection Of Children Against Sexual Offences)	16
Sexual Offence Against Women	17
CONCLUSION	19

ABSTRACT

Through this Article the author tends to analyze the role of Medical Practitioner in criminal investigation. Medical Practitioner plays an important role in criminal justice system, medical reports or medical document are very important in criminal cases. The key point is to provide with the information related to timing and manner of death for determination of criminal justice system, Medical practitioner provide a push in the case of crime scene investigation by determining the following factor. In many criminal cases to frame the charges, medical documents are referred. In the cases of heinous crimes like Murder, Rape etc role of medico legal experts plays an important role, and it becomes very duty of legal system to protect the right of Medical Practitioner and as well as the right of the victim and the accused. The main and the last objective is to serve Justice without obstructing the Right of any person. Role and scope of a medical practitioner is very important when it comes to the scenario of Indian legal system the same has been discussed in various Precedents, Books of Law i.e CRPC etc. The article attempts to disclose medical practitioner role in various criminal proceeding and the provisions under the light of which, Indian legal system allows medical practitioner to play their role in criminal investigation as well as in trial.

Key Words: Victims, Accused, Medico Legal Experts, CRPC, Precedents, Criminal Investigation, Medical Reports, Trial, Indian Legal System.

INTRODUCTION

Kautilya's Arthshashtra states that there are 4 different ways by which demise can be brought about by halting the breathing (Strangling, Hanging, Asphyxiation or suffocating), two different ways of Physical Injury (by Beating or by Throwing from a stature) or Poisoning (by toxins, snake or creepy crawly chomp or opiate drugs). Arthshastra gives a rundown of manifestations according to legal proof for building up the reason for death (stanza 4.7.2-10).

In the event that if passing is suspected because of harming, the undigested part from the supper ought to be inspected by nourishing them to winged animals. On the off chance that these parts when tossed in fire, produce a snapping sound and become diverse, harming is demonstrated. On the off chance that the heart or stomach doesn't urn when the body is incinerated, at that point harming is likewise demonstrated (stanza 4.7.12.13). Instances of suicide by hanging will be researched to find out whether any bad form had been done to expired (stanza 4.7.16).

On finding the killed body of a more interesting, his own having a place, for example, garments, dress and adornments will be inspected. Vendors in these articles will be interrogated concerning their gathering with the dead man, his stay in that spot the purpose behind his stay in that spot, the explanation behind his remain, his occupation and business managing. Further examination will be made based on these enquiries (stanza 4.7.23.24). The officer will direct a posthumous on any instance of abrupt (unnatural) demise subsequent to covering the body with oil to bring out wounds, expanding and different wounds (stanza 4.7.1)

In British India, the early frequency of custodial demise and its affirmation by restorative professionals were accounted for in the then Madras in 1678. At the point when a trooper, Thomas Savage, in a tanked fight manhandled his prevalent official, he was attached to the bed and his neck and heels with hands behind and knees on shoulders were bound. Along these lines, he kicked the bucket and the Governor Sir William Langhorne requested his body to be investigated by Surgeons. John Waldo (Surgeon) and Bezaliel Sherman (Second Surgeon), saw the body and gave the first passing endorsement in Quite a while as pursues: "We guaranteed being quickly to help there about said Thomas Savage discovered him dead and clear characteristics of his authoritative about his neck, which we judge to be the reason for his demise."

Around the world, the divisions of Forensic Medicine are controlled either by the wellbeing or home or law services of the administration. In India, they go under the organization of the Ministry of Health, though, the recipients of their work are legal executive and police which either go under

4

¹ Wheeler, Talboys J: Madras in the Olden Times, New Delhi, AES (Republished), 1993, p 55–56

the Ministries of Law or Home. This inconsistency has restrained the development of the frameworks which thus has influenced the nature of the medico-legitimate administrations.

The Gujarat High Court watched the wretched disposition of the restorative officials while taking note of down the occurrences that lead to supporting wounds in medico-legitimate cases. It guided the Registry to advance a duplicate of the judgment that managed widely on the obligations of restorative experts while going to on the medico-legitimate cases, to the Director General of Police and the Secretary, Health and Family Welfare Department with a solicitation to consolidate important rules in the Gujarat Police Manual and in course of the therapeutic law separately to edify and bestow productive preparing to the exploring officials and the medicinal officials by giving an essential roundabout right away. It held further that the Secretary, Health and Family Welfare Department ought to likewise make sure that the medico-legitimate perspectives are educated to the therapeutic understudies during their undergrad preparing of Medical Jurisprudence. The Secretary, Legal Department was told to screen the execution of bearings of the Court². In 2008, the Madras High Court underscored the significance of improving the nature of the medico-lawful administrations gave by the therapeutic experts³.

LEGAL PROCEDURE

A Medical Practitioner should much of the time give proof as a specialist restorative observer in an official courtroom to help demonstrate the honesty or blame of a denounced, or to confirm or negate a criminal allegation of ambush, assault or murder brought against a person. A restorative specialist must recall that his obligation as a specialist medicinal observer is vital, for regularly, his proof is the main truthfully solid proof on which the freedom or life of an individual depends. In this way, the medicinal expert needs to guzzle the propensity for making cautious notes of the considerable number of actualities saw by him, and to figure out how to draw suppositions effectively and intelligently subsequent to considering in detail the upsides and downsides of the case, rather than making rushed ends.

Medical Expertise is urgent in death examination⁴. It starts with body assessment and proof gathering at the scene and continues through history, physical assessment, research center tests, and conclusion to put it plainly, the wide elements of a specialist's treatment of a living patient⁵. The key objective is to give target proof of cause, timing, and way of death for arbitration by the

² State of Gujarat v Hasmukh @ Bhikha Gova Harijan, (1996) 1 GLR 292 para 13

³ Muniammal v The Superintendent of Police, Kancheepuram District, Kancheepuram, (2008) 1 Mad LW (Crl) 573

⁴ Clark SC (1999) Death Investigation: A Guide for the Scene Investigator. National Institute of Justice, Washington, USA

⁵ Miller MT (2003) Crime scene investigation In: Forensic Science: An Introduction to Scientific and Investigative Techniques. In James SH, Nordby JJ, Florida (Eds.), USA, pp. 115-135

criminal equity framework. Passing examination has been performed for a considerable length of time in all social orders, despite the fact that the essential objective of a demise examination is to build up the reason and way of death, in death examination is to profit the living and who and what is to come⁶

LEGAL PROCEDURE IN JUDICIAL ENQUIRY

POLICE INQUEST

As per Section 174 of the CrPC, all over India, an official, as a rule of the position of a sub-examiner of Police accountable for a police headquarters, on getting data of any unintentional or unnatural passing of any individual, promptly illuminates the closest officer of the equivalent and continues to where the body of the perished individual is lying.

For a situation of smelled a rat, or uncertainty in regards to the reason for death, the cop advances the dead body for after death assessment to the restorative official of the area or some other qualified medicinal man approved to hold such an assessment, outfitting him with the unmistakable roll and full points of interest, history of case to empower him to discover the reasonable justification of death. This is done if climate and separation grant its being sent without danger of rottenness to a degree that would render such assessment futile. As indicated by area 162 of the CrPC, when the exploring official requests an announcement, the restorative official needs to give it except if generally coordinated by some other principle recommended by the state government.

MAGISTRATE INQUEST

This is led by a District Magistrate, Sub – divisional Magistrate, Tahsildar or some other Executive Magistrate (S.20 to 23 Cr. PC), particularly enabled by the State Government (Executive Magistrates). It is done in the event of

- (1) Passing in police guardianship, and keeping in mind that under police cross examination,
- (2) Passing because of police terminating,
- (3) Passing in jail, reformatories, Borstal school,
- (4) Passing in a mental emergency clinic,
- (5) Share passing
- (6) Exhumation

⁶. Prahlow J (2010) Forensic Pathology for Police Death Investigators, Attorneys and Forensic Scientists. New Jersey, USA

(7) Any individual bites the dust or vanishes or assault is claimed to have been submitted on any lady, while such individual or lady is in the care of the police or some other care approved by the Court (S.174(4), S.176 and 176, 1 - A, Cr.P.C.). Regardless of death, a Magistrate may direct an investigation, rather than or notwithstanding the police examination (S.176, Cr.P.C).

The Supreme Court takes note of that the official holding an examination on a dead body should hold the investigation on the spot⁷. In any case, it is noticed that many examining officials move the body to the funeral home and afterward hold the investigation, which is certainly not a right practice.

<u>DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE INQUEST REPORT AND THE POST-MORTEM REPORT.</u>

At the point when the medical official discovers grave contrasts between the examination and the post-mortem, he can illuminate the researching official through the police constable to meet him at the soonest. Regardless of whether there is some error between the examination report and the after death report, the rundown of wounds, referenced in the investigation report can't beat the subtleties of the posthumous report.⁸

RELEVANCY OF MEDICAL WITH OTHER LAWS

INDIAN PENAL CODE, 1860

Rational soundness is a rebuttable assumption, and the weight of confirmation is on the gathering denying it; the standard of evidence is on a parity of probabilities, that is, to state that psychological inadequacy is almost certainly. In the event that this weight is effectively released, the gathering depending on it is qualified for succeed. In Lord Denning's judgment in Bratty v Attorney-General for Northern Ireland⁹, at whatever point the respondent makes an issue of his perspective, the indictment can show proof of madness. In any case, this will regularly possibly emerge to invalidate the resistance situation when automatism or lessened duty is in issue. In down to earth terms, the resistance will be bound to raise the issue of mental insufficiency to refute or limit criminal obligation.

In R v Clarke¹⁰, a respondent accused of a shoplifting asserted she had no mens rea in light of the fact that she had missing mindedly left the shop without paying on the grounds that she

7

⁷ KP Rao v Public Prosecutor, 1975 SCC (CV) 678

⁸ Maula Bux v State of Rajasthan, (1983) 1 SCC 379; Munshi Prasad v State of Bihar, (2002) 1 SCC 351; State of UP v Shobanath, (2009) 6 SCC 600. The primacy of post mortem reports over Inquest reports are due to the fact that the former are prepared by doctors and the latter, by police personnel. Police officers are not experts as the doctors are. ⁹ 1963 AC 386

 $^{^{10}}$ 1972 1 All E R 219

experienced melancholy. At the point when the indictment endeavored to cite proof this comprised madness inside the Rules, she changed her supplication to blameworthy, however on offer the Court decided that she had been just denying mens rea instead of raising a resistance under the Rules, and her conviction was subdued.

The general principle was expressed that the Rules apply just to cases in which the deformity of explanation is generous. R v Kemp¹¹: Arteriosclerosis or a solidifying of the veins caused loss of control during which the litigant assaulted his significant other with a mallet. This was an interior condition and a sickness of the psyche. R v Sullivan¹² during an epileptic scene, the respondent caused unfortunate real mischief: Epilepsy was an interior condition and a malady of the psyche, and the way that the state was short lived was unimportant.

INDIAN EVIDENCE ACT, 1872

There are two tiers of courts to survey certainties: at the principal level is the Trial Court or more, the Court of Appeal. Section 3 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 states that what is proof is just that proof which is recorded during preliminary in Court when opportunity is given to the blamed to interrogate the observers. The proof might be oral or narrative or concoction investigation report or scientific proof. On the off chance that truthful proof isn't let in during the preliminary, it can't be ordinarily taken up at a later stage.

Proof methods and incorporates: (1) All reports created for the examination of the Court (S.3, I.E.A.) (2) All explanations which the Court allows or requires to be made before it by observers, in connection to issues of actuality under request. For the proof to be acknowledged by the Courts, it must be appropriately recognized about what it is, and where it was found. The proof of onlookers is sure. The proof of specialist or a specialist is just a sentiment which is demonstrative.

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE:

Medical certificates: They allude to sick wellbeing, insanity, age, passing, and so forth. They are acknowledged in a Court of law, just when they are given by a certified enrolled medicinal specialist. The authentication of sick wellbeing ought to contain precise nature of the disease and likely time of anticipated nonattendance. The signature or left Duhan Innovare Journal of Medical Science, Vol 4, Issue 2, 1-5 3 thumb impression of the patient ought to be taken at the base or top of the authentication. Two recognizable proof imprints ought to be noted. The specialist ought to hold a copy of the authentication gave for a long time. A medicinal expert is will undoubtedly give a demise authentication, expressing the reason for death without charging expense, if an individual whom he has been going to during his last sickness bites the dust (Registration of Births and

-

^{11 1957 1} QB 399

^{12 1984} AC 156

Deaths Act, 1970). The passing declaration ought not be given by a specialist without assessing the body and fulfilling himself that individual is extremely dead. The authentication ought not be postponed, regardless of whether the specialist's charges isn't paid. Giving or marking a bogus authentication is culpable under S. 197, I.P.C.

Medico-legal reports: They are reports arranged by a medical practitioner on the solicitation of the investing official, for the most part in criminal cases, for example attack, assault, murder, and so forth. The assessment of a harmed individual or a dead body is made when there is an order from a cop or Magistrate. These repots comprise of two sections: (1) The realities saw on assessment (all applicable, target portrayals including significant negative discovering), (2) the feeling drawn from the realities. These reports will be appended to the document identifying with the case, and the record is delivered in the Court. The report will be available to the investigation of the guard legal counselor. It won't be conceded as proof except if the specialist goes to the Court and vouches for the reality having sworn to tell the truth. Extraordinary consideration ought to be taken recorded as a hard copy the reports to maintain a strategic distance from any free wording or imprudent proclamation. This allows to the resistance legal advisor to utilize them to further his own potential benefit. The report should give the date, time, and spot of assessment and the name of person who recognized the individual or dead body. Misrepresented terms, superlatives, and so on., ought not be utilized. The conclusion ought to be founded on the realities saw by him and not on data acquired from different sources. In damage case, on the off chance that it is unimaginable to expect to give an assessment promptly, the individual ought to be held under perception, and fundamental examinations ought to be done before giving the report. The report should demonstrate skill, absence of predisposition, and offer solid expert exhortation. The report ought to be made not long after the assessment. It ought to be clear, succinct, complete, decipherable, and it ought to dodge specialized terms beyond what many would consider possible. Exhibits: Clothes, weapons, and so forth., sent for restorative assessment ought to be depicted in detail, fixed, and came back to the police in the wake of acquiring a receipt. A framework of the weapon might be drawn on paper, and the estimation noted or a photo taken.

ORAL EVIDENCE:

It incorporates all explanations which the Court grant or which are required to be made before it by the observers, in connection to the matter of actualities under enquiry. Section 3 of Indian Evidence Act defines the reality as:

- 1) Anything, situation, or connection of things, equipped for being seen by the sense;
- 2) Any state of mind of which any individual is cognizant.

DYING DECLARATION

It is a written or oral statement of an individual, who is biting the dust because of some unlawful act, identifying with the material realities of the reason for his passing or bearing on the conditions (S.32, I.E.A.). On the off chance that there is time, the Executive Magistrate ought to be called to record the revelation. Prior to recording the announcement, the specialist ought to guarantee that the individual is cognizant, and his intellectual capacities are typical (compos mentis). On the off chance that the state of the injured individual is not kidding, and there is no time call a Magistrate, the specialist should take the affirmation within the sight of two observers. The announcement ought to be recorded in the man's very own words, with no change of terms or expressions. Driving inquiries ought not be put. The declarant ought to be allowed to give his announcement with no undue impact, outside provoking or help.

In Suresh v State of MP¹³, (1) Crimes 385, the specialist who recorded the perishing assertion, dismissed under the steady gaze of the court that the declarant was in a fit condition of wellbeing to make a presentation, and was in his detects when the withering announcement was recorded. The specialist further expressed that when he was recording the perishing affirmation, the declarant had begun going into extreme lethargies. The withering assertion was held dependable and the denounced was sentenced. Where the withering presentation was recorded by the subauditor of police however there was sufficient opportunity to approach the legal judge for chronicle the perishing assertion, and the specialist had affirmed that the declarant was fit enough to own the expression, the perishing revelation was held dependable.¹⁴

MEDICAL EVIDENCE AND MEDICAL WITNESS

The following are the major types of evidence before the Court:

- 1. Direct proof is proof given where witness affirms straightforwardly of his own insight with regards to the principle truth or actualities in contest.
- 2. Circumstantial proof which will in general demonstrate a definitive certainty in issue; possible proof. It is the proof gotten from conditions as recognized from immediate and positive confirmation. It is the surmising of a reality from different actualities demonstrated, and the realities in this way deduced and consented to by the psyche is said to be assumed; in other words, it is underestimated until the opposite is demonstrated. 15

¹³ AIR 1987 SC 860 : (1987) 2 SCC 32 : 1987

¹⁴ Surinder Kumar v State, (1987) 1 SCC 467

¹⁵ P Ramanatha Aiyar's Advanced Law Lexicon, 3rd Edn, 2005.

- 3. Substantial proof is proof which a sensible man will acknowledge as sufficient for landing at the choice for a situation. ¹⁶
- 4. Corroborative proof is the proof that agrees with proof.¹⁷

Medicinal proof comprises of specialist's report of the assessment, reports of the ballistic guns or unique mark specialists or of the substance inspector and serologist, and the specialist's oral proof or other master's oral proof. The safeguard can utilize medicinal proof to demonstrate that the wounds couldn't in any way, shape or form have been caused in the way claimed or passing couldn't in any way, shape or form have been caused in the way asserted by the indictment and on the off chance that it can do as such, it dishonors the observers¹⁸. Medicinal proof is typically supposition proof¹⁹.

In Mayur Panabhai Shah v State of Gujarat²⁰, the Supreme Court watched: The educated judge was directly in seeing that "our courts have constantly accepted the specialists as observer of truth". Indeed, even where a specialist has ousted in court, his proof must be acknowledged like the proof of some other observer and there is no irrebuttable assumption that a specialist is constantly an observer of truth.

A doctor isn't worried with respect to who carried out the offense or whether the individual brought to him is a lawbreaker or a common observer; his essential exertion must be to spare the life of the individual brought to him and educate the police in medico-legitimate cases. Where a contention was progressed for the benefit of the charged that the onlookers didn't reveal the name of the attacker to the specialist, the Supreme Court in P Venkaiah v State of AP²¹, saw that the specialists, before whom the dead bodies are delivered or harmed people are brought, either themselves take the withering assertion or hold the after death promptly and on the off chance that they start analyzing, the sources they are probably going to move toward becoming observers of the event which isn't admissible.

On the off chance that immediate proof is good and dependable; the equivalent can't be dismissed on speculative restorative proof²². For a situation, the restorative official removed that the shot had been discharged from a separation of around six feet. The charged fought that making a decision from the territory of spread, the weapon shots were most likely discharged from a

¹⁶ ibid

¹⁷ Indian Evidence Act, 1872, section 8 illustration (j).

¹⁸ State of UP v Mushtaq Alam, (2007) 11 SCC 215; Jabir v State of Haryana, (2002) 10 SCC 324 : 2003 SCC (Cri) 1443 : 2003 Cr LJ 826

¹⁹ Duraipandil v State of TN, AIR 1973 SC 659: 1973 Cr LJ 602

²⁰ AIR 1983 SC 66: 1982 Cr LJ 1972: 1983 (2) RCR (Crl) 577

 $^{^{21}}$ AIR 1985 SC 1715 : 1985 Cr LJ 2012

²² Punjab Singh v State of Haryana, 1984 Cr LJ 921 (SC)

separation of 36 yards which rendered the arraignment story farfetched. The Supreme Court held that the observers had given dependable direct proof of the wrongdoing; the distinguishing proof of the attackers was not in uncertainty. The conviction of the charged people was maintained²³. In Adya Singh v State of Bihar²⁴, the announcement of the observer was that the perished was hit on his back by the shot discharged by the appealing party. The proof of the specialist who played out the posthumous assessment was that the passage twisted was on the chest and leave twisted was on the back. The proof of observer was bolstered by the specialist who gave damage endorsement not long after subsequent to analyzing the perished. Conditions showed that the specialist who played out the after death was helping the denounced who was a compounder, in an administration emergency clinic. The Supreme Court held that there truly was no irregularity between visual proof and therapeutic proof, and proof of the specialist who played out the after death was not giving honest proof for reasons of interestedness with the attacker/blamed.

Where the medicinal proof on the two sides is similarly adjusted, the advantage of uncertainty must be given to the blamed. In such a case, the Supreme Court would not meddle with the request for absolution recorded by the High Court²⁵. In Majju v State of MP²⁶, the specialist who analyzed the harmed following the event and arranged injury testament, discovered chiseled injuries on head as liable to have been brought about by sharp-cutting weapon, while the specialist who led posthumous assessment expressed that those wounds were brought about by some unpolished weapon. The specialist who initially analyzed the expired depicted the idea of wounds which were completely in similarity with the oral proof given by the observers. The dependence on his proof, disposing of the proof of the specialist who performed posthumous was held by the Supreme Court to be proper. It is the privilege of the Court to follow up on the declaration of one specialist as opposed to on the declaration of another.

MEDICAL WITNESS

Witnesses are of two sorts, in particular, common and expert. A common witness is one who vouches for the realities saw without anyone else. A expert witness²⁷ is one who, on account of his expert preparing, is equipped for concluding suppositions and derivations from the realities saw by him or saw by others. The Supreme Court held that the expert must state basic scholastic

²³ Karnail Singh v State of Punjab, AIR 1971 SC 2119: 1971 Cr LJ 1463

²⁴ (1998) 6 SCC 439 : 1998 SCC (Cri) 1463 : AIR 1998 SC 3011

²⁵ State (Delhi Administration) v Gulzari Lal, AIR 1979 SC 1382, 1383

²⁶ (2001) 9 SCC 449 : AIR 2001 SC 2939

²⁷ Indian Evidence Act, 1872, section 45

foundation. Expert preparing and involvement in the concerned subject. It is for the Court to choose the ability of observer as a specialist if a question emerges over competency²⁸.

The Indian Medical Council Act, 1956 in area 15 (2)(C) states that no individual other than a medical Practitioner selected on a State Medical Register will be qualified for give proof at any examination or in any official courtroom as a specialist under segment 45 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 on any issue identifying with medication. The assessment of the specialist who is a specialist must be upheld by reasons and it is the reasons and not ipse dixit which is of significance in surveying the value of the supposition. For this situation the supposition composed was as an answer to specific inquiries made by the sub-overseer of police. The specialist was not inspected for the situation. The doctor report was dismissed as it didn't contain reasons.²⁹

In Madan Gopal Kakkad v Naval Dubey³⁰, the Supreme Court held that a Medical Witness brought in as a expert to help the Court isn't an observer of actuality and the proof given by the medicinal official is truly of a warning character given based on indications found on assessment. The master observer is relied upon to put under the steady gaze of the Court all materials comprehensive of the information which incited him to reach the resolution and illuminate the Court on the specialized part of the case by clarifying the terms of science so the Court, despite the fact that not a expert, may frame its own judgment on those materials in the wake of giving due respect to the master's conclusion on the grounds that once the master's supposition is acknowledged, it isn't the assessment of the medical officer however of the Court.

In State of Haryana v Bhagirath ³¹, it was held that the feeling given by a medical witness need not be the final word regarding the matter. Such a supposition will be tried by the Court. In the event that the assessment is deprived of rationale or objectivity, the Court isn't obliged to pass by that conclusion. Since conclusion is what is shaped in the psyche of an individual with respect to a reality circumstance, and in the event that one doctor structures one feeling and another doctor frames an alternate sentiment on similar actualities it is available to the judge to embrace the view which is progressively goal or plausible. Thus, if the feeling given by one doctor isn't predictable with likelihood the Court has no obligation to pass by that sentiment simply in light of the fact that it is said by the doctor. Obviously, due weight must be given to sentiments given by people who are experts in the specific subject.

²⁸ Chand Batra v State of UP, AIR 1975 SC 139: (1974) 4 SCC 247

²⁹ Paloniswamy v State, AIR 1968 Born 127 : 1967 Cr IIJ 453;

³⁰ (1992) 3 SCC 204 para 34 at pp 221–22

³¹ AIR 1999 SC 2005 : [1999] 3 LRI 643 : (1999) 5 SCC 96 : 1999 SCC (Cr) 658 : 1999 Cr LJ 2898

LAWS GOVERNING MEDICAL PRACTITIONER

In India the accompanying Acts grant self-guideline in keeping up the expert principles in the preparation, acknowledgment of scholastic capabilities, permitting of new participants to the calling and in authorizing disciplinary command over the rehearsing medical practitioners of allopathy, ayurveda, siddha, unani and homeopathy, dental specialists and the nursing staff and the drug specialists.

- 1. The Indian Medical Degrees Act, 1916
- 2. The Indian Medical Council Act, 1956
- 3. The Dentists Act, 1948
- 4. The Indian Nursing Council Act, 1947
- 5. The Indian Medicine Central Council Act, 1970
- 6. The Homeopathy Central Council Act, 1973
- 7. The Pharmacy Act, 1948
- 8. The Clinical Establishment (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2010.

MEDICAL NEGLIGENCE

With the advancement of progress, medical negligence was progressively treated as a tort by the legal executive so the exploited people can be given harms. As customary law was advancing in England, the most punctual recorded activity against a medical man was mounted in 1374 when a specialist, J Mort, was brought before the King's Bench concerning his treatment of a harmed hand. He was in reality held not subject, yet the Court said that if such a patient demonstrated negligence, the Court would give a cure. Notwithstanding, of a lot more prominent hugeness, was the way that the Court likewise held: If the specialist does so well as he can, and utilizes all his ingenuity to the fix, it isn't right that he ought to be held guilty³².

Medical negligence might be characterized as need of sensible level of consideration and ability or wilful negligence, with respect to a medical practitioner in the treatment of a patient with whom a relationship of expert chaperon is set up, in order to prompt his real damage or to a mind-blowing loss. Present day tort law separates between wounds, which are a consequence of deliberate direct and those subsequent from negligence. In a civil activity, the offended party needs to demonstrate that:

1. his perceived lawful right had been encroached;

³² "Swing The Doctors—An Inexorable Spiral?" Editorial, The Medico-Legal Journal, vol 55, Pt Two, 1987, pp 65–67 at 65

- 2. That there was an obligation of consideration, which was broken by the litigant, i.e., the doctor; and that
- 3. This break was the reason for damage to him;
- 4. As an outcome from this damage, the loss of pay, additional costs and mental torment and agony could be likened regarding cash with the end goal of remuneration.

Justice Barry in Moore v Lewisham Group³³, held that when there are really two capable ways of thinking about administration of a clinical circumstance the Courts could do no more prominent damage to the network or the progression of medical science than to put the corridor sign of lawfulness upon one type of treatment.

CRIMINAL NEGLIGENCE

A doctor can be accused of chargeable murder or negligence when a patient passes on from the impacts of anesthesia, an activity or other sort of treatment, in the event that it very well may be demonstrated however the demise was the consequence of gross negligence. Preceding the organization of anesthesia or execution of an activity, the medical man is relied upon to pursue the acknowledged safeguards.

In India, section 304-An of IPC is summoned to enroll a grumbling against a medical practitioner for supposed criminal expert negligence where the disappointment of treatment bringing about death was inferable from medical negligence. On the off chance that the patient endures and experiences the impacts of supposed unfortunate wounds supported during the treatment, the medical practitioner can be charge-sheeted for offense under either section 337 or section 338 of IPC. In UK and USA when expert negligence is included, it is considered as automatic murder.

The simple actuality that a real existence has been lost or that some individual has gotten damage won't prompt an assumption of a rash or careless act. It has over and again been expressed by Courts in India that all together, that a certified doctor to be held liable of criminal negligence, his negligence must be of a gross sort. Basic absence of consideration should offer ascent to just civil risk. Along these lines, realities which legitimize a finding of civil negligence may not be sufficient for holding an individual criminally at risk. ³⁴

A doctor, accountable for a dispensary, thoughtlessly stirred up containers of toxic medications and managed them, without perusing the names on the jugs, with the outcome that few patients kicked the bucket. He was held liable under section 304-An of the Indian Penal Code for causing

^{33 [1959]} CLY 2253

³⁴ Kusum Sharma v Batra Hospital and Medical Research Centre, (2010) 3 SCC 480 : AIR 2010 SC 1050 : 2010 (2) SCR 685.

passing by negligence³⁵. An expanding inclination of resort to criminal moves against doctors make shape through recording of private complainants and once in a while by police on a FIR being held up and cognisance taken. The researching official and the private complainant can't generally should know about medical science in order to decide if the demonstration of the denounced medical expert adds up to rash or careless act inside the space of criminal law under section 304-An of IPC.

ROLE IN CASE OF SEXUAL OFFENCES

As indicated by National Crime Records Bureau's (NCRB) late report 'crime Clock-200S', which followed criminal exercises in the course of the most recent year, the nation revealed one wrongdoing against ladies like clockwork; one molestation at regular intervals; one rape like clockwork, one dowry death like clockwork, and one sexual harassment case at regular intervals. Among the wrongdoings recorded by the NCRB, rape, molestation, sexual' harassment, and dowry, deathswere revealed all the more as often as possible.

POCSO (PROTECTION OF CHILDREN AGAINST SEXUAL OFFENCES)

A huge headway in the field of sexual offense is an exceptional law for assurance of kids from sexual offenses. The Act will be appropriate to a kid injured individual and a grown-up guilty party³⁶. A requirement for discrete law for youngsters is unreasonably apparent for a unique accentuation. In the event that two kids participate in sexual offense with one another or the culprit of the offense is a kid, the Juvenile Justice (Care and Protection of Children) Act will apply. As the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the 2012 Act elucidates and finds communicated in the Preamble, the enactment is to shield kids from offenses of sexual ambush, sexual harassment and erotic entertainment and accommodate foundation of Special Courts for preliminary of such offenses and for issues associated therewith or accidental thereto. This is a protected help for sanctioning extraordinary law for youngsters under Article 15 (3) of the Constitution.

The focal holding in the choice of the Supreme Court in Independent Thought v UOI³⁷, discovering Exception 2 to section 375 so far as it avoided from the meaning of rape, the sexual ambush by the husband on his significant other who was under 18, was on the premise that POCSO didn't contain any such special case and henceforth there was no clear differentia to make

³⁵ PM De'Souza v Emperor, AIR 1920 All 32 : (1920) 1921 Cr LJ 367.

³⁶ See Pratiksha Baxi: Public Secrets of Law, Rape trials in India, Chap 3, The Child witness on trial © OUP 2014. The author suggests in this chapter to the effect that though the evidentiary requirement for conviction for rape is for an adult crime, the child should be able to testify in whatever words it can, so that if a child knows only slang words or names body parts, it should not be seen as having been tutored

³⁷ AIR 2017 SC 4904 : 2017 (4) RCR (Criminal) 595

for such exemption. The age as referenced alludes to the real age and not "mental age" where a grown-up has because of mental impediment is reviewed to be rationally of age under 18³⁸.

The medical assessment of a youngster in regard of whom any offense has been perpetrated under this Act, will, notwithstanding that a First Information Report or grievance has not been enlisted for the offenses under this Act, be led as per section 164-An of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (2 of 1974). In the event that the injured individual is a young lady kid, the medical assessment will be directed by a lady doctor. The medical assessment will be directed within the sight of the parent of the youngster or some other individual in whom the kid rests trust or certainty.

The Special Court will attempt cases in camera and within the sight of the guardians of the youngster or some other individual in whom the kid has trust or certainty. On the off chance that the Special Court is of the feeling that the kid should be inspected at a spot other than the Court, it will continue to give a commission as per the arrangements of section 284 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (2 of 1974).

SEXUAL OFFENCE AGAINST WOMEN

Seizures, epileptic fits and mental disturbance have been known to pursue rape. There could be not kidding contaminations, for example, AIDS or other sexually transmitted maladies, hepatitis B, undesirable pregnancy, urinary tract diseases and so on. Death may happen because of rape from stun because of fear and mental feeling from wounds coming about because of the aggressors with an end goal to overwhelm the person in question, or because of inordinate seeping from serious wounds to the privates and perineum, particularly among kids. These conditions should help the doctor to remember his essential obligation as a social insurance pro, who will regard the unfortunate casualty as a patient before tending to different issues that may definitely have a heading to accumulation of proof for a criminal Trial.

It is constantly alluring that the casualty of rape and the denounced ought to be medically analyzed as fast as could be expected under the circumstances, generally significant proof bearing on the blame of the charged might be lost. Assessment of smegma loses all significance following 24 hours of sexual intercourse³⁹.

The accused should initially be recognized by the individual who brought him, typically a police constable, whose number and name ought to be noted. The Medical Examination Report of the accused fuses the accompanying: fundamental information (counting character marks); assessment of his garments; his physical and foundational assessments; wounds on his body and

³⁸ Eera through Manjula Krippendorf v State by NCT of Delhi, AIR 2017 SC 3457 : 2017 (3) Bom CR (Cri) 593

³⁹ S P Kohli v High Court of Punjab & Haryana, AIR 1978 SC 1753 : 1978 Cr LJ 1804 (SC)

private parts; gathering and conservation of materials for research center assessments; and conclusion about whether the accused is equipped for playing out the sexual demonstration.

In his expert profession, the medical practitioner should as often as possible give proof as a medical expert in an official courtroom to demonstrate the guiltlessness or blame of the accused, or to confirm or refute a criminal allegation of attack, rape or murder brought against a person. He should recall that as a medical expert, his duty is exceptionally extraordinary, for all the time he will find that he is the main solid proof on which depends the freedom or life of an individual being. In this way, he needs to procure the propensity for making a cautious note of the considerable number of certainties saw by him, and to figure out how to reach inferences effectively and legitimately in the wake of considering in detail the advantages and disadvantages of the case, rather than framing hurried ends. It is similarly basic that a medical expert must have a reasonable information of the considerable number of parts of medical and auxiliary sciences instructed to a medical understudy over the span of his investigations ⁴⁰.

The non-creation of a medical report isn't deadly, if the other proof for the situation is discovered trustworthy⁴¹. For a situation under the steady gaze of the Supreme Court, the complainant and her husband had a place with a regressive network and originated from a remote territory. The complainant even had cleaned up and washed her garments after the rape. The Supreme Court held that the complainant and her husband originated from a retrogressive network and couldn't be relied upon to realize that they should race to the doctor for medical assessment. The non-creation of medical proof was of no impact, as other proof was discovered dependable. The accused was indicted on the charge of rape ⁴².

⁴⁰ State of Gujarat v Patel Limba Manji, 1979 Cr LR (Guj) 411, 412 (DB). 9

⁴¹ Sheikh Zakir v State of Bihar, AIR 1983 SC 911: 1983 Cr IIJ 1285.

⁴² ibid

CONCLUSION

Forensic science adds to understanding wrongdoings through analytical exercises, for example, deciding the reason for death, distinguishing suspects, finding missing people, and profiling criminals. Forensic pathologists decide somebody's reason for death by performing postmortems. During these techniques, they inspect liquids and tissues from a body to discover the reason for death and the way of death (for instance, regular causes or crime). Forensic researchers can distinguish suspects by breaking down proof found at the location of a wrongdoing -, for example, filaments, hairs, blood, and fingerprints. These techniques are likewise used to excuse the honest. They can help discover individuals who have been missing for extensive stretches of time through the procedure of picture adjustment. In this strategy, a photo is matured to outline what somebody may resemble a long time after last being seen. This is additionally an apparatus that is utilized to discover criminals who have evaded equity. By dissecting a wrongdoing scene, they can decide a criminal's examples and character with an end goal to limit the presume pool. Along these lines, unmistakably the investigation of medical statute is required to the lawful practitioners and learning of the law is fundamental for the medical practitioners to divulge the genuine things and put under the steady gaze of legal advisors and judges. The investigation of lawful arrangements likewise shields them from being careless. An unpredictable indictment of medical experts for criminal negligence is counter-profitable and does no administration or great to the general public. There must be a connection between shortcoming, fault, and equity necessities. The scholarly creators of Errors, Medicine, and the Law feature the connection between good flaw, fault, and equity in reference to the medical calling and negligence⁴³. Conviction for any considerable criminal offense necessitates that the denounced individual ought to have acted with an ethically reprehensible perspective. Heedlessness and conscious bad behavior are ethically accountable, yet any direct missing the mark regarding that ought not be the subject of criminal risk. Custom-based law frameworks have generally possibly made negligence the subject of criminal approval when the degree of negligence has been high a standard customarily portrayed as gross negligence. Indeed, negligence at that level is probably going to be unclear from heedlessness⁴⁴. At last, it turns out that Forensic science is the marriage of common science standards and the law. In this association, forensic experts utilize their logical foundations to help law requirement work force comprehend wrongdoings.

-

⁴³ 17. Bag RK. Law of Medical Negligence and Compensation. New Delhi: Eastern Law House Pvt. Ltd.; 2001.

⁴⁴ Molan MT, Molan M, Bloy D, Lanser D. Modern Criminal Law. 5th ed. Abingdon, UK: Routledge Cavendish; 2003